IN THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

RECEIVED

NOV 13 2017

SC Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas
The Honorable J.C. Nicholson, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

Case No. 2017-001620

Robert N. Baty
Appellant,

v.

Lydia B. Welling
Respondent.

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Samuel B. Cooper, Jr.
Green Law Firm, LLC
P.O. Box 70306
North Charleston, SC 29415
(843) 747-2455
Attorney for the Appellant

Shana M. Stephens
Anderson, Reynold & Stephens
37 ½ Broad Street
Charleston, SC 29401
(843) 723-0185
Attorney for the Respondent

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

- I. Whether the trial court improperly dismissed the Appellant’s case for lack of personal jurisdiction?**

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from the trial Judge’s dismissal of Plaintiff’s case for lack of personal jurisdiction when the Respondent had already made a voluntary appearance by

Answering the Appellant's summons and complaint. The trial Court ruled as follows:

I. Plaintiff did not comply with the Order for Publication.

Plaintiff failed to comply with the Order for Publication, only publishing two out of the three weeks required both by the Order and S.C. Code Ann. § 15-9-710. As stated by the Court in Dubose, the "statute expressly requires that the order shall be the basis of the publication." Du Bose v. Du Bose, 90 S.C. 87 (1911) "Shall be the basis" in its simplest definition means pre-exists or comes first. The Order must be signed before it is valid. "[W]hen an officer is performing the ministerial duty of issuing a paper on compliance with certain conditions prescribed by law, his signature at the foot of the paper he intended to sign is necessary to its validity." Id. Publication before the officer has signed the order to publish is therefore invalid.

Plaintiff argued that service should be valid despite only publishing a notice on two dates, July 27, 2016 and August 3, 2016, after the Clerk's Order granting Plaintiff permission to begin service by publication. The Order requires publication once a week for three weeks, the minimum allowed by SC Code Ann. § 15-9-740. Orders constitute the basis of many of the actions in the legal profession and justice system. Their importance in conducting court business should not be underestimated. As the Order of the Clerk is the basis of publication, stating in which periodical and duration of time publication is required, attempts to publish before an Order is issued are insufficient and invalid.

II. Plaintiff did not comply with S.C. Code Ann. 15-9-740 as to the contents of the Summons.

S.C. Code Ann. 15-9-740 requires that, "In all cases in which publication is made the complaint must first be filed and the summons, as published, must state the time and place of such filing." None of Plaintiff's published notices includes the time and place of the Complaint's filing, April 11, 2016 at the Charleston County Court of Common Pleas.

Service by publication demands strict compliance with the statute. "Service by publication of the summons... is in derogation of the common law, and the statute must be strictly construed." Tenney v. American Pipe Mfg. Co. 96 F. 919 (C.C.D.S.C. 1899). "[T]here must be a strict compliance with the statutes and rules on constructive service; compliance is jurisdictional, and if any essential statutory step is omitted, the decree rendered on such service is void." Caldwell at 574 quoting, Sanders v. Sanders, 12 Md. App. 441, 278 A2.d 615, 618 (Md. Ct. Spec. App. 1971).

South Carolina Rule of Civil Procedure 4 requires that the Summons and Complaint must be served together to effectuate service and establish jurisdiction over a Defendant. In this case, the Complaint was not served nor published. Instead, a Summons was ordered to be published by the Clerk of Court in accordance with S.C. R. Civ. P. 4(e). Service by publication in South Carolina is controlled by S.C. Code Ann. § 15-9-710 & S.C. Code Ann. § 15-9-740.

The South Carolina Supreme Court has addressed the issue of a Summons failing to comport with the statutory requirements stating, "The purpose of a

summons is to inform the defendant. When an action is commenced by the use of a summons only, it should be in keeping with the statute.” Crawford v. Murphy, 260 S.C. 411, 415 (1973). South Carolina requires strict compliance with statutes allowing service by publication. As Plaintiff’s published Summons did not include the date and place of filing, the Summons was deficient.

III. Failure to serve Defendant Welling within the Statute of Limitations.

South Carolina Rule of Civil Procedure 3(a) requires that a Summons and Complaint are filed within the Statute of Limitations and service is effectuated within the Statute of Limitations or not later than 120 days after the filing of the action if service is not completed within the Statute of Limitations. S.C. Code Ann. § 15-3-530(5) provides for a three year statute of limitations for an action on any injury to the person, establishing the proper statute of limitations for this action. Plaintiff filed this action on April 11, 2016 and as such had until August 9, 2016 to perfect service. Service was not properly perfected for the reasons stated above.

However, the Trial Court could have and should have considered that Respondent entered an Answer on June 9, 2016; and in that Answer, Respondent did not raise a lack of Personal Jurisdiction, thus ruled that personal service had already been waived by Respondent and improper service by publication was moot.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On May 6, 2013 in Charleston County, the Appellant was involved in a motor vehicle collision with Respondent, Lydia Welling, and Amanda Lockman. On April 11,

2016, your Appellant filed suit naming each as a Defendant. Plaintiff perfected service upon Defendant Lockman by US postal service April 18, 2016 and filed an Affidavit of Service on May 5, 2016. Plaintiff attempted service upon Respondent using her last address known to the South Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles. Appellant attempted by way of the US postal service, but was unsuccessful. Appellant attempted service through the Charleston County Sheriff, but was unsuccessful as Respondent had moved and provided no forwarding address or locale. On June 9, 2016, Respondent entered a general Answer, did not raise jurisdiction or service, made a general appearance, and requested relief from the Court. On June 23, 2016, Respondent amended her pleadings. Appellant petitioned for service by publication July 18, 2016, which was Ordered on July 21, 2016, and filed with Charleston County Clerk on July 22, 2016. The Summons and Complaint were published in the Charleston City Paper on July 20, 2016 through July 26, 2016, July 27, 2016 through August 2, 2016 and August 3, 2016 through August 9, 2016. On August 3, 2016, Defendant's counsel contacted Plaintiff's counsel requesting copies of all documents filed with the Court due to the Defendant's appearance in the case. An affidavit of publication was filed August 25, 2016. Respondent entered a Motion to dismiss November 7, 2016. The Hearing was conducted on January 26, 2017. An Order of Dismissal was entered on March 14, 2017. A Motion to Reconsider was filed on March 14, 2017. The Motion to Reconsider was heard on June 12, 2017. The Motion to reconsider was denied July 7, 2017. A Notice of Appeal entered July 25, 2017.

ARGUMENTS

I. THIS COURT SHOULD RULE THAT RESPONDENT WAIVED PERSONAL JURISDICTION BY SUBMITTING AN ANSWER TO THE SUMMONS AND PLEADING WITHOUT ANY LIMITATIONS AS TO THE COURT'S PERSONAL JURISDICITON, AND AS SUCH PERSONAL JURISDICTION OVER RESPONDENT APPLIED.

The standard of review is whether a court may exercise personal jurisdiction over a non-resident defendant is one that must be resolved upon the facts of each particular case. Moosally v. W.W. Norton & Co., 358 SC 320, 327, 594 S.E.2nd 878, 882 (Ct. App. 2004). “The decision of the trial court should be affirmed unless unsupported by the evidence or influence by an error of law.” *Id.* Service of process is not a prerequisite to this Court having Personal Jurisdiction. “Although a court commonly obtains personal jurisdiction by the service of the summons and complaint, it may also obtain personal jurisdiction if the defendant makes a voluntary appearance.... Voluntary appearance by a defendant is equivalent to personal service.... Rule 4(d) SCRPC. “A defendant may waive any complaints he may have regarding personal jurisdiction by failing to object to the lack of personal jurisdiction and appearing to defend his case. Ex parte Cannon, 385 S.C. 643 (2009).

Personal jurisdiction may be waived by a party. A general appearance constitutes a voluntary submission to the jurisdiction of the court and waives any defects and irregularities in the service of process.... a defendant, by his

appearance, “asks any relief which can only be granted on the hypothesis that the court has jurisdiction of his person, then he has made a general appearance. Strickland v. Consolidated Energy Products Co., 274 S.C. 544 (1980).

If the defendant wishes to preserve an objection to personal jurisdiction he cannot request any relief which may be granted only if the court has jurisdiction. When he [defendant] enters a general appearance he submits himself to the jurisdiction of the court. Payne v Holiday Towers, Inc. 283 SC 210 (1984).

**II. THIS COURT SHOULD REVERSE THE TRIAL COURT’S
DISCRETIONARY RULING TO THAT APPELLANT’S
PUBLICATION OF THE SUMMONS DID NOT COMPLY
WITH SCCA §15-9-740.**

The Code is silent as to the timing and if an Order must be signed before publication may be initiated. There are more substantial issues that are key to protecting the rights an interest of a potential party opponent. Because a party opponent may not see pleadings that are published, the Code demands diligence in locating the party opponent, and documentation of that effort to dissuade fraud.

The Court has adjudicated several questions of insufficient service by Publication. Caldwell v. Wiquist 402 SC 565 (2013) the question was diligence. The court held, “Where a party contests the validity of an Order of publication based on lack of diligence in attempting to locate the party, the court has held that the trial court is without authority to overrule the finding of the clerk of Court, In Montgomery v. Mullins 325, SC 500, 505-06 480 S.E.2d 467 (Ct.App 1997). The question was "In the absence of fraud or collusion, the decision of the

officer ordering service by publication is final." Id. at 506, 480 S.E.2d at 470.

An opponent is entitled to fair notice of an action that may prejudice their interest. The Court held in Watts v. Metro Security Agency 346 S.C. 235 2001 "The purpose of a pleading is fair notice to the opponent and the court."