THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY  
Court of Common Pleas

The Honorable J.C. Nicholson, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

**RECEIVED**  
MAR 23 2018  
SC Court of Appeals

Case No.: 2016-CP-10-1849  
Appellate Court Case No. 2017-001620

Robert N. Baty.....Appellant,

v.

Lydia B. Welling ..... Respondent.

**INITIAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT LYDIA B. WELLING**

Shanna Milcetic Stephens (SC Bar No. 72012)  
Thomas F. Drazan (SC Bar No. 101180)  
Post Office Box 87  
Charleston, South Carolina 29402  
(843) 723-0185 - office  
(843) 405-0313 – facsimile  
[sstephens@arslawsc.com](mailto:sstephens@arslawsc.com)

**STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL**

- I. DID THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY RULE THAT APPELLANT FAILED TO PRESERVE HIS ARGUMENT FOR APPEAL THAT RESPONDENT MADE AN APPEARANCE AND AVAILED HERSELF TO THE COURT'S JURISDICTION?
- II. DID RESPONDENT PRESERVE HER SERVICE DEFENSES BY INCLUDING THEM IN HER AMENDED ANSWER THAT WAS PROPERLY PRESERVED AND FILED UNDER S.C.R.C.P. 15(a) AND S.C.R.C.P. 12(h)(1)?
- III. DID THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY RULE THAT APPELLANT FAILED TO SERVE RESPONDENT BY PUBLICATION IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE STATUTE?

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case arises out of an automobile accident occurring on or about May 6, 2013. Appellant filed their Complaint against Respondent Lydia B. Welling and Co-Defendant Amanda Lockman on April 11, 2016 in the Charleston County Court of Common Pleas. Respondent filed an Answer on June 9, 2016. (R. \_\_\_\_). Respondent filed an Amended Answer, asserting service defenses and moving for dismissal, on June 24, 2016. (R. \_\_\_\_). Respondent filed a “hard” Motion to Dismiss on November 8, 2016. (R. \_\_\_\_).

Approximately one month after Respondent filed her Amended Answer, on July 22, 2016, Appellant filed a Motion for Service by Publication and two supporting affidavits: 1) an Affidavit of Non-Service by Charleston County Sherriff’s deputy Kevin Rudy filed July 22, 2016 and 2) an Affidavit of Due Diligence by Plaintiff’s Counsel filed July 22, 2016. An Order for Service by Publication was filed on July 22, 2016 granting Appellant permission to begin service via publication on Respondent. Per the Order, publication was to be made in the Charleston City Paper once a week for three weeks. Appellant’s Affidavit of Publication from the Charleston City Paper states that the “summons” Appellant provided was published on July 20<sup>th</sup>, 27<sup>th</sup>, and August 3<sup>rd</sup> of 2016.

Respondent filed a Memorandum in Support of her Motion to Dismiss on January 25, 2017. (R. \_\_\_\_). A hearing on Respondent’s Motion to Dismiss was held on January 26, 2017 in front of the Honorable J.C. Nicholson, Jr. (*See generally the transcript*, R. \_\_\_\_). After the hearing, both Appellant and Respondent were given an opportunity to submit supplemental memorandum. On February 6, 2017, Respondent filed a Supplemental Memorandum in Support of Motion to Dismiss and submitted a copy to the presiding Judge. (R. \_\_\_\_). Respondent Welling was dismissed from this action by Order signed March 9, 2017 and filed March 14,

2017. (R. \_\_\_\_). The March 14<sup>th</sup> Order dismissed Respondent for Appellant's failure to publish the notice in compliance with the Order for Service by Publication; failure for the notice to comply with the statutory requirements on content of the notice; and for failure to perfect service on Respondent within the time allotted under the applicable three year statute of limitations, S.C. Code Ann. §15-3-530(5), and Rule 3(a) of the S.C.R.C.P. *Id.*

On March 27, 2017, Appellant filed a Motion for Reconsideration pursuant to South Carolina Rule of Civil Procedure 59(e). Respondent filed a Memorandum in Opposition to Appellant's Motion for Reconsideration on April 11, 2017. (R. \_\_\_\_). A hearing on Appellant's Motion for Reconsideration was held on June 12, 2017. (*See the transcript generally*, R. \_\_\_\_). The Honorable J.C. Nicholson, Jr. signed an Order, dated July 5, 2017, filed July 7, 2017, denying Appellant's Motion for Reconsideration. (R. \_\_\_\_). On July 25, 2017, Appellant sent their Notice of Appeal for filing.

### ARGUMENT

#### **I. APPELLANT FAILED TO PROPERLY PRESERVE FOR APPEAL HIS ARGUMENT THAT RESPONDENT MADE AN APPEARANCE AND AVAILED HERSELF TO THE COURT'S JURISDICTION**

Appellant's first basis for his appeal is Respondent's alleged waiver of service of process defenses. However, Appellant did not preserve that argument for appeal. On January 24, 2017, Appellant submitted to Respondent, but did not file, a Memorandum in Opposition to Defendant's Motion to Dismiss. Appellant's Memorandum did not make a single reference to an alleged waiver of service defenses by Respondent. The Court heard oral arguments on January 26, 2017. During oral arguments, not once did Appellant argue the alleged waiver of service defenses by Respondent. (*See generally the transcript*, R. \_\_\_\_). Appellant submitted a Supplemental Memorandum in Opposition to Respondent's Motion to Dismiss on February 3,

2017. Nothing contained in the supplemental memorandum referenced an alleged waiver of defenses. Appellant never once argued the alleged waiver until his Memorandum in Support of the Motion for Reconsideration.

South Carolina case law is clear that SCRCF Rule 59(e) motions for reconsideration are not a chance for the moving party to raise new issues or give parties a second bite at the apple. "A party cannot use a Rule 59(e) motion to advance an issue the party could have raised to the Circuit Court prior to Judgment but, did not." *Stevens & Wilkinson of S.C., Inc. v. City of Columbia*, 409 S.C. 563, 567, 762 S.E.2d 693, 695 (2014) quoting, *Hickman v. Hickman*, 301 S.C. 455, 456-57, 392 S.E.2d 481, 482 (Ct. App. 1990).<sup>1</sup> The Circuit Court denied Appellant's Motion for Reconsideration on this exact issue writing:

Upon review of the pleadings, memoranda, and arguments at the hearing on 6/12/17, Plaintiff's Motion to Reconsider filed on 3/27/17 is respectfully **denied**... It is not properly before the Court because the waiver argument was not raised until the motion to reconsider. A party cannot use a motion to reconsider, alter or amend a judgment to present an issue that could have been raised prior to the judgment but was not. *Dixon v. Dixon*, 362 S.C. 388, 399, 608 S.E.2d 849,854 (2005) (finding issue raised for first time in Rule 59, SCRCF, motion is not preserved for review); *Kiawah Prop. Owners Grp. v. Public Serv. Comm'n.*, 359 S.C. 105, 113, 597 S.E.2d 145, 149 (2004) (stating an issue raised for first time in petition for rehearing not preserved). *Poch v. Bayshore Concrete Prod./S.C., Inc.*, 386 S.C. 13, 31, 686 S.E.2d 689, 699 (Ct. App. 2009), aff'd as modified, 405 S.C.359, 744 S.E.2d 757 (2013). (R. 2).

---

<sup>1</sup> *Hickman* additionally cites the following: "See *Natural Resources Defense Council v. U.S. E.P.A.*, 705 F. Supp. 698, 701 (D. D.C. 1989), vacated on other grounds, 707 F. Supp. 3 (D. D.C. 1989) ("Rule 59(e) motions are not vehicles for bringing before the court theories or arguments that were not advanced earlier."); *Smith v. Stoner*, 594 F. Supp. 1091, 1118 (N. D. Ind. 1984) ("Issues which could have been presented to the court for consideration previously, but which were not, are not the proper subject of Rule 59(e) relief; the issues are waived."); *Johnson v. City of Richmond*, 102 F.R.D. 623, 623 (D.D. Va. 1984) ("I do not conceive of Fed. R. Civ. P. 59(e) as serving the office of providing a disappointed suitor which a post-judgment opportunity to argue that which could have been argued pre-judgment.").

Appellant now attempts to bring to the Court of Appeals the exact issue the Circuit Court determined was not preserved in denying Appellant's S.C.R.C.P. 59(e) motion to alter or amend. The lower court properly ruled that Appellant did not preserve the waiver argument. Therefore, this issue is not properly preserved for the appellate court to consider.

**II. RESPONDENT DID NOT MAKE AN APPEARANCE AND/OR AVAIL HERSELF TO THE COURT'S JURISDICTION AS RESPONDENT'S SERVICE DEFENSES INCLUDED IN HER AMENDED ANSWER WERE PROPERLY PRESERVED AND FILED UNDER S.C.R.C.P. 15(a) AND S.C.R.C.P.12(h)(1)**

Despite Appellant's failure to preserve their waiver of service argument for appeal, Appellant's Motion for Reconsideration was also properly denied on the merits. Respondent filed an Answer to Plaintiff's Complaint on June 9, 2016. (R. \_\_\_\_). Though Respondent's initial pleading did not contain defenses pursuant to SCRCP 12(b)(4) and (5), Respondent filed an amended pleading on June 24, 2016, within the 30 days allowed under SCRCP 15(a). (R. \_\_\_\_). Respondent's Amended Answer *did* assert improper service defenses under SCRCP 12(b)(4) and (5). *Id.* Appellant incorrectly asserts that Respondent waived her service-related defenses even though she included them in her Amended Answer, filed just two weeks after the initial Answer. South Carolina Rule of Civil Procedure 12(h)(1)(B) clearly states that a defense is not waived if included in an amended pleading made in accordance with SCRCP 15(a):

“A defense of lack of jurisdiction over the person, improper venue, insufficiency of process, insufficiency of service of process, or that another action is pending between the same parties for the same claim is waived (A) if omitted from a motion in the circumstances described in subdivision (g) or (B) if it is neither made by motion under this rule nor included in a responsive pleading or an amendment thereof permitted by Rule 15(a) to be made as a matter of course.” South Carolina Rule of Civil Procedure 12(h)(1).

By including defenses pursuant to S.C. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(4) and (5) in her Amended Answer timely filed in accordance with S.C. R. Civ. P. 15(a), Respondent did not waive her defenses and those relevant defenses were/are properly before the Court. Further, Appellant had to admit in the Motion to Reconsider hearing that Respondent never once engaged in any written discovery or activity whatsoever that could be deemed to equate making an appearance in the case. (*See transcript, pages 5, 6, R. \_\_\_\_\_*).

### **III. APPELLANT FAILED TO PROPERLY SERVE RESPONDENT BY PUBLICATION IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE STATUTE**

South Carolina Rule of Civil Procedure 3(a) requires that a Summons and Complaint are filed within the Statute of Limitations and service is effectuated within the Statute of Limitations or not later than 120 days after the filing of the action if service is not completed within the Statute of Limitations. South Carolina Code Ann. § 15-3-530(5) provides for a three year statute of limitations for an action on any injury to the person, establishing the proper statute of limitations for this action. Appellant filed this action on April 11, 2016 and as such had 120 days, until August 9, 2016 to perfect service. Appellant did not perfect service within the allotted time, nor has Appellant perfect service to this day.

S.C. R. Civ. P. 4 controls methods of service for the summons and Complaint. S.C. R. Civ. P. 4(e) allows for service by other means for individuals who are not inhabitants or able to be found within the state as prescribed by statute, rule, or order.

South Carolina Courts have long held, and continue to affirm, that statutes outlining service of process by publication require strict compliance. *See Riker v. Vaughan*, 23 S.C. 187 (1885), *Du Bose v. Du Bose*, 90 S.C. 87, 72 S.E. 645 (1911), *Caldwell v. Wiquist*, 402 S.C. 565, 741 S.E.2d 583 (Ct. App. 2013). “[T]here must be a strict compliance with the statutes and rules on constructive service; compliance is jurisdictional, and if any essential statutory step is

omitted, the decree rendered on such service is void.” *Caldwell* at 574 quoting, *Sanders v. Sanders*, 12 Md. App. 441, 278 A2.d 615, 618 (Md. Ct. Spec. App. 1971).

For instance, The South Carolina Supreme Court has held service by publication was not effectuated when a clerk neglected to sign an Order for Publication at the foot of the page but, endorsed the back of the order and signed after publication was made, in accordance with the unsigned order, as an additional endorsement of the order. *Dubose* at 89. The Court continued addressing directly the issue at bar in this matter, “it seems clear that the signing of the order after publication was unavailing because the statute expressly requires that the order ***shall be the basis of the publication*** (bold italics added).” *Dubose* at 89. “Shall be the basis,” in its simplest definition means pre-exists or comes first. The Order must be signed before it is valid.

South Carolina Code Ann. § 15-9-710 clearly requires a showing of diligence in attempting to serve a party be made to “the court or judge thereof, the clerk of the court of common pleas, the master, or the probate judge of the county in which the cause is pending.” The ability to serve a party by publication requires Plaintiffs first make a showing sufficient to receive an order allowing service by publication, and then comply with the order as to the publication in which to publish, the frequency, and the duration of the notice.

Merely publishing a notification in a newspaper of general circulation even if formulaically compliant with SC Code Ann. § 15-9-740, without an order, would not effectuate process. As stated by the Court in *Dubose*, the “statute expressly requires that the order shall be the basis of the publication.”

Regardless if service complies with the eventual order of a Clerk of Court, the order must be signed before it is valid. “[W]hen an officer is performing the ministerial duty of issuing a paper on compliance with certain conditions prescribed by law, his signature at the foot of the

paper he intended to sign is necessary to its validity.” *Id.* Publication before the officer has signed the Order to Publish is therefore invalid.

Appellant’s brief focuses on the validity of the clerk’s order, which Respondent does not challenge. The clerk clearly has the power to order service by publication but, as stated in *Dubose*, the order is the *basis* from which to publish. Until a valid order is signed, publication has no effect. Orders constitute the basis of many of the actions in the legal profession and justice system. Their import in conducting court business should not be underestimated. Appellant’s failure to publish in accordance with the Clerk’s Order is a fatal error.

Appellant suggests that because the newspaper in which the notice was published is only published once a week and available to the public for a week it was “published” the remaining days in the week after the order was signed. Appellant fails to note that the Clerk directs where and for what duration a notice must be published. The fact that Appellant published the notice in the local periodical referenced in the Order does not satisfy the fact that there was no order directing the service before publication began. Additionally, the periodical chosen for the notice contains a single volume, issue, and date on the front page. It is not published for the ‘week of’ but instead published once a week, each publication having its own issue number and date. By Appellant’s logic, the publication of a notice in a magazine which releases monthly issues but was available on newsstands for four weeks would have equally satisfied the order. This is not the intention of the legislature, nor strict compliance with the Statute.

Appellant argues in this case that service should be valid despite only publishing a notice on two dates, July 27, 2016 and August 3, 2016, after the Clerk’s order which requires publication once a week for three weeks, the minimum allowed by SC Code Ann. § 15-9-740. Appellant advances this argument on the false belief that notice published on July 20, 2016,

*before* an issued or signed order of the Clerk, should be considered to suffice for one of the required publication dates. It is clear from over one hundred years of South Carolina Courts' precedent that Appellant's attempt at service is deficient.


Additionally, Appellant has failed to comply with the requirements for the notice to be published. SC Code Ann. 15-9-740 requires that, "In all cases in which publication is made the complaint must first be filed and the summons, *as published, must state the time and place of such filing.*" (emphasis added). None of Appellant's published notices included the time and place of the Complaint's filing, April 11, 2016 at the Charleston County Court of Common Pleas. Again Appellant has failed to comply with the strictly construed statutory requirements for service by publication.

### CONCLUSION

Appellant argues that 1) Respondent waived personal service by voluntarily availing herself to jurisdiction and 2) that Appellant's service by publication was not deficient. Appellant failed to preserve their waiver argument. Even if Appellant had properly preserved their waiver argument, the South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure clearly state that such service defenses are not waived if included in an amendment by right under S.C. R. Civ. P. 15(a). Appellant further argues their pre-mature service by publication, *before* an Order allowing such publication existed, should be allowed. South Carolina Courts have continued to hold strict compliance is necessary when effectuating service by process because of its natural defects in providing effective notice. Appellant failed to serve the Respondent for three consecutive weeks after the imposition of the order and therefore the Circuit Court's Dismissal is proper.

Lastly, the Circuit Court properly held that the notice published did not comply with the statutory requirements to identify the time and place of the filing. It does not appear that

Appellant has challenged this basis for dismissal in their Initial Brief. Therefore, the Circuit Court's dismissal on those grounds is unchallenged. For all the reasons stated above, Respondent respectfully requests the Appellate Court affirm the Lower Court's Order of Dismissal.



---

Shanna Milcetic Stephens (SC Bar No. 72012)  
Thomas F. Drazan (SC Bar No. 101180)  
Post Office Box 87  
Charleston, South Carolina 29402  
(843) 723-0185 - office  
(843) 405-0313 – facsimile  
[sstephens@arlawsc.com](mailto:sstephens@arlawsc.com)  
[tdrazan@arlawsc.com](mailto:tdrazan@arlawsc.com)  
**Attorneys for Respondent Lydia B. Welling**

Charleston, South Carolina